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F"ILE:o 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORN_IA 

January 2014 Grand Jury 

uNITED STATES.OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

. A.SHOT SANAMIAN, · 
· DAVID EfkRR-:fS6N'-", -----------·--
ELZA BUDAGOVA, 

· THEODORE CHANGKI YOON; 
PHIC LIM, 

aka "E'J<,." and 
PERRY TAN NGUYEN, 

Defendants. 

The Grand Jury charges: 

CR No. ll-922 (B)-DDP 

S E C 0 N D 
SUPERSEDING 
INDICTMENT--· - - - - - - - - -
(21. u.S;C, § 84():. Conspiracy to 

·Distribute Controlled · 
. Si:tbS-tarrc.,,s'rc-is--o~~'c;-"- a13-4-~~-'- ------
conspiracy. to Commit.Health Care 
Fraud; 31 U. S .c. § 5324 (a) (3) : 
Structuring Financial 
Transactions.·;. 19, u. S. c .. 
§ i957 CaJ: ·Trahsacitional Money 
Laundering: 18 u: S. c. · § 2: · 
Aiding·and Abetting and Causing 
an Act to Be.Done; and 21 U.S.C. 
§ 853, 18 U.S.C. § 98l(a) (1) (C); 
28 u.s.c. § 246l(c); 18 u.s.c. 
§ 982; 31 u.s.c. § 5317: 
Forfeiture] 

GENERAL· ALLEGATIONS 

At all times relevant to this Second Superseding 

Indictment: 

27 The Clinic and its Operations 

. 28 Co-Conspirators Mike Mikaelian ("Mikaelian"), and 
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1 Angelika Sanamian ("Angelika Sanamian"), and others operated a 

2 purported medical clinic that did business, at different times, 

3 at the following locations: 2120 West 8th Street, Los Angeles,. 

4 California; 5250 Santa Monica Boulevard, Los Angeles, 

5 California; and 13746 Victory Boulevard #106, Van Nuys, 

6 California, each within the Central District of California· 

7 (hereinafter, collectively referred to as .the "Clinic"). 

8 .2. The Clinic functioned as a "prescription mill" that 

9 generated prescriptions for OxyContin that the· Clinic's 

10 purported "patients" did not need ·and submitted claims to 

11 Medicare and Medi-Cal for services that were medically 

.12 unnecessary, not ordered by a doctor.and/or not performed. 

13 3. The Clinic .. used patient recru.iters, or. "Cappers," who 

14 brought Medicare beneficiar:i,eil,. )lledi-Cal beneficiaries, ari,d · 
- . 

15 other "p.;(tients". to the Clinic (the "recruited PEttients") .i11. 

16 exchange for cash or other inducements: 

17 4. At- the· _Clinic,_ the recruited· patients. were. routinely 

18 issued a p:re13cription for 90 pills of OxyContin 80mgstre:rigth, 

19 5. For many Medicare and, Medi-Cal patients, the Clinic 

20 .also ordered unnecess~ry medical tests,. such as nerve conduction 

21 velocity ("NCV") studies, electrocardiograms, ultrasounds, and 

22 spirometry (a type of pulmonary test) . Some of the tests were 

23 performed; others were not. The Clinic further created 

24 falsified medical paperwork for Medicare and Medi-Cal patients· 

25 to provide ·a false appearance of legitimacy for the Clinic, its 

26 OxyContin prescriptions, and its billings to Medicare arid Medi-

27 Cal. 

28 6. Through a company called A & A Billing Services 

2 
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1 ("A & A"), owned by defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN and operated by co-

2 conspirator Angelika Sanamian, the Clinic billed· Medicare Part B 

3 and/or Medi-Cal for unnecessary office visits and tests, and for 

4 tests and procedures. that were not ordered by a doctor and/or 

5 not performed as represented in the claims submitted to Medicare 

6 and Medi-Cal. 

7 7. After the oxycontin prescriptions were issued, 

s "Runners" employed by the Clinic either took the recruited 

9 patients, or only the prescriptions and related documentation, 

10 to pharmacies, including.pharmacies owned and/or operated by 

11 defendants THEODORE. CHANGKI YOON ("YOON") ' PHIC. LIM ("LIM") I 

12 also known as ("aka") "PK," PERRY TAN NGUYEN ("NGUYEN"),· and co-

13 conspirators Theana Khou ("Khou") and Matthew Cho ("Cho"), 

14 which filled the prescriptions., . The Runners, . rather. than. the . 

15 pat_ie11.ts, took the _oxyContin and delivered it to co-conspirator 

16 Mikaelian, who then sold it on the stre~ts. 

17 . 8. _J;i'or patient:s who hag Med_icare prescription ,jrug. 

18 coverage (Medicare. Part D), the ,pharmaci.es tlia:t --dispensed the 

19 Oxycontin either billed the patient's prescription drug plan 

20 - ("PDP") for the OxyContin prescriptions they. filled or were paid 

21 in cash by the Runners and did not bill the PDP. 

22 9. The Clinic also generated OxyContin prescriptions in 

23 ·the names.of individuals who never visited the Clinic or had 

24 visited the Clini<i! once in the past. In these instances, using 

25 falsified patient authorization forms Runners took the 

26 prescriptions for these "pati.ents." to the pharmacies and paid 

27 the pharmacies in cash for the OxyContin, which they then 

28 delivered to co-conspirator Mikaelian for resale on the streets. 

3 
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1 10. During the Clinic's operation, it diverted more than 

2 13,000 bottles of OxyContin. Because the Clinic almost 

3 exclusively prescribed 90 quantity pill bottles, more than 1.1 

4 million OxyContin pills were diverted during the course of the 

5 conspiracy described herein. 

6 11. During this same time period, the Clinic and its 

7 doctors fraudulently billed Medicare approximately $4.6 million 

8 for medical services and fraudulently billed Medi~Cal 

9 approximately $1.6 milli.on for such services.· Medicare Part B 

10 paid approximately $473,595.23 on those claims and Medi-Cal paid 

11 approximately $546,551.00 on those claims. In addition, 

12 Medicare Part band Medicare PDPs paid approximately $2.7 

13 million .f.or Oxycontin prescribed by the Clinic and its doctors. 

14 ·12. Defendants LIM. and ll[GUYEN, together with co-
-- '~-- .. - - ... - - - - - . : - -. . . 

. 15 . conspirator Khou, structured the_ deposits gf. cash, generated. from 

16 the sale of OxyContin prescribed by the Clinic and its doctors 

1.7 into their bank account13 by (ieposi ting. __ t_h,e 9ash in. amounts, of 

18 $10,000 or less to evade-bank reporting requirements for. 

19 transactions over $10,000. 

20 13. Co-conspirators Mikaelian and Angelika Sanamian used 

21 cash proceeds of the conspiracy to. gamble at casinos, to 

22 purchase luxury goods, including automobiles and jewelry, and to 

23 buy OxyContin. 

24 Defendants and Their Co-Conspirators 

25 14. Co~conspirator Mikaelian was the administrator of the 

26 Clinic and sold the OxyContin obtained via prescriptions issued 

27 at the Clinic on the streets. 

28 15. Co-conspirator Angelika Sanamian was the manager of 

4 
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1 the Clinic; as well as the contact person and biller for 

2 Medicare and Medi-Cal claims at the Clinic. 

3 16. Defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN was a co-owner and CEO of A & 

4 A and was also a Runner for the Clinic. 

s 17. Co-conspirator Eleanor Santiago, MD ("Santiago") was a 

6 medical doctor, licensed to practice medicine in California and 

7 authorized to prescribe Schedule II narcotic drug_s, who worked 

8 at the Clinic throughout its operation. Co-conspirator Santiago 

9 was the Medical Director of the Clinic. 

10 18. Co-conspirator-Dr. H ("Dr. H") was a medical doctor, 

11 licensed to practice )Iledicine· in California and authorized to 

12 prescribe Schedule II narcotic drugs, who worked at the Clinic 

13 from in or about l_ate 2008 through in or about August 2010. 

14 19. Defendant DAVID_ GARRISON ("GARRISON") was_ a 

15 phy$icia~' s as~istci:nt, :J.icen.sed in Cal~fornia, who worked at the -

16 Clinic from approximately the summer of 2009 until the Clinic 

17 closed in o;r:- abouj:_.August. 2010. 

18 20. Co-conspirator Julie Shishalovsky _- _( "Shishalovsky") - - . - ' ' .. . \ 

19 --worked at the Clinic as a medical assistant; receptionist, and_ 

20 office manager from the fall of 2008 until the Clinic closed in 

21 or about August 2010. 

22 21. Defendant ELZA BUDAGOVA ( "BUDAGOVA") was a medical 

23 assistant at the Clinic from in or about December 2008 until the 

24 Clinic closed in or about August 2010. While at the Clinic, 

25 defendant BUDAGOVA acted as an unlicensed Physician's Assistant 

26 and created medical files for patients purportedly seen by a 

27 doctor or a physician's assistant at the Clinic. 

28 22. Co-Conspirator ·Li lit Mekteryan ( "Mekteryan") was an 

5 
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1 ultrasound technician who worked at the Clinic from 

2 approximately January 2009 through approximately August.2009. 

3 23. Co-Conspirators Edgar Hovannisyan ( "Hovannisyan"), 

4 Keith Pullam, aka "Keith Pulman," aka "KMAC" ("Pullam"), and 

5 Miran Derderian ("Derderian") were Runners for the Clinic during 

6 the Clinic's operation. 

7 24. Co-conspirators.David Smith, aka "Green Eyes" 

8 ("Smith"), ·Pullam, and Rosa Garcia Suarez, aka "Maria" 

9 · ("Suarez") , were Cappers who recruited patients for the C.linic 

10 during the Clinic's operation. 

11 25. Defendant YOON was a pharmacii:it, licensed in 

il.2 California to lawfully dispense prescribed Schedule II narCotic. 

13 drugs, Defendant YOON was the part-owner, officer, operator of, 

14 and/or licensed :eharmacist at Gemmel pharmacy, Inc.,includirig: 

15 (1) Gemmel Pharmacy of Cucamonga,, . located in Rancho Cucamonga, 

16. California; (2) Gemmel Pharmacy of Ontario, located in Ontario, 

17 ,California; {3) Gemmel Phar_macy Rancho, lo()_ated in Ranch()_. 

18 Cu0amonga·; California; (4) East L.A. HealtJ;l Pharmacy ("East. 

19 L.A."), located in Los Angeles, California; and (5) B&B Pharmacy 

20 ("B&B"), located in Bellflower, California (collectively the 

21 "Gemmel Pharmacies") . .Defendant YOON also owned and operated 

22 Better Value Pharmacy ("Better Value"), located in West Covina 

23 California, and Better Care Pharmacy ("Better Care"), located in 

24 Van Nuys, California. Defendant YOON filled and caused to be 

25 filled prescriptions from the Clinic at the Gemmel Pharmacies, 

26 Better Value Pharmacy, and Better Care Pharmacy starting in or 

27• about July 2009. Defendant YOON controlled a bank account 

28 ending in 5701 at Nara Bank, a domestic financial institution 

6 
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1 ("Nara Account 1"), from which he withdrew proceeds derived from 

2 the sale of Oxycontin and transferred them into a Gemmel 

3. Pharmacy; Inc. bank account ending in 5471. at Wilshire State 

4 Bank, a domestic financial institution ("Wilshire Account 1"). 

5 26. Defendant LIM was a pharmacist, licensed in California 

6 to lawfully dispense prescribed Sche.dule II narcotic drugs. 

7 Defendant LIM was the part-owner, officer, operator of, and/or 

8 licensed pharmacist at the Gemmel Pharmacies, from which 

9 defendant LIM filled and caused to be filled prescr,iptions from 

10 the Clinic, starting in or about July 2009. 

11 27.· ·Defendant.LIM and co-conspirator Khou were the owners 

12 and operators of Huntington Pharmacy, located in San Marino, 

13 California. Defendant LIM filled and caused to be filled 

14 prescriptions from the. C.linic at !Iuntington: Pharl]lacy sta:rting .in 

15 or <J.bout: July 2009. Defendant LIM and co~~onsp:i.#:ato:r; Khou 

16 maintained control over accounts at Chase Bcl~k, a.domestic 

.. 17 J;'inancial inE1t:i.tution, _ending in_ 0.7_25 ("ChaE1e.Accoun.t 1"), .6::!03 

· 18 , ("Chase Account 2"), a.nd 2674 ("Chase, Accouht.,3"), · apd at HSBC 

19 Bank, a domestic financial institution, ending.in .0993. ("HSBC 

20 Account 1"), into.which defendant LIM and co-conspirator Khou 

21 deposited proceeds from the sale of oxyContin. 

22 28. Co-conspirat.or Cho was a pharmacist, licensed in 

23 California to lawfully dispense prescribed Schedule II narcotic 

24 drugs. Co-conspirator Cho was the part-owner, officer, operator 

25 of, and/or licensed pharmacist at the Gemmel Pharmacies, from 

26 which Cho filled and caused to· be filled prescriptions from the 

27 Clinic, starting in or about July 2009.· 

28 29. Defendant NGUYEW was a pharmacist, licensed in 

7 
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1 California to lawfully dispense prescribed .Schedule II narcotic 

2· drugs. Defendant NGUYEN owned and operated St .. Paul's Pharmacy 

3 ("St. Paul's"), located in Huntington Park, California, from 

4 which defendant NGUYEN filled and caused to be filled 

5 prescriptions from the Clinic, starting in or about December 

6 2000. Defendant NGUYEN controlled bank accounts at Bank of 

7 America, a domestic financial institution, ending in 1213 ("Bank 

8 of America Account 1") and·1025 ("Bank of America Account 2"), 

9 into which defendant NGUYEN deposited proceeds from the sale of 

10 oxyContin. 

11 30. co-Conspirator. Tran was a pharmacist, licensed in 

12 California to lawfully dispense .prescribed Schedule II narcotic 

13 drugs. Co-Conspirator Tran owned and operated Mission Pharmacy 

14 , ("Mission"), lbqated in Panorama City and Fountain Valley,. 

15 California, from.which Tt-an.filled and caused to be filledc 

16 prescriptions from the· Clinic,. starting in or abo11t August 2008. 

17 QxyContin and CURES Data. 

18 31. .oxycontih was a· brand name for the generic . drug 

19 oxycodone, a Schedule II narcotic drug, and was manufactured by 

20 Purdue Pharma L.P. ("Purdue") in Connectic.ut·. 

21 32. Purdue manufactured OxyContin in a controlled release 

22 pill form in lOmg, 15mg, 20mg, 30mg, 40mg, 6Dmg, 80mg, and 160mg 

23· doses. The 80mg pill was one of the strongest strength of 

24 OxyContin produced in prescription form for the relevant period. 

25 ·33. The dispensing of all Schedule II narcotic drugs was 

26 monitored by law enforcement through the Controlled Substance 

27 utilization Review & Evaluation System ("CURES"). Pharmacies 

28 dispensing Schedule.II narcotic drugs were required to self-

8 
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1 report when such drugs were dispensed. 

2 34. Based on CURES data, from in or· about August 2008 to 

3 in or about August 2010, purported medical professionals working 

4 at the Clinic prescribed OxyContin over 13,000 times, 

5 approximately 99% of which were for 80mg doses. 

6 35. During this same time period, co-conspirator Santiago 

7 prescribed oxyContin more than 6,151 reported times, and co-

8 conspirator Dr. H prescribed OxyContin more than 2,301 reported 

. 9 times. 

10 36. Based on CURES dat~, from in or about August 2008 to 

11 ·in or about August 2010, the Gemmel Pharmacies, Better Value.· 

12 Pharmacy, Better care Pharmacy, Huntington Pharmacy, St. Paul's 

13 Pharmacy, and Mission Pharmacy (collectively,. the ~'Subject 

14. Pharmacies" l dispensed more than 9., 706 of. the Clinic doctors 1 

~ ... 

15 reported prescriptions. f?rOxyContin,_ or approximately 74%of 

16 the total number of prescript.ion's issued from the Clinic. The 

17 .. Clinic prescxiptions made up api;:>:t:'oximat.ely 5:).% of the. Subje.c.t 

18 Pharmacies' . 80mg oxyContin sales .. 

19 The Medicare Program 

20 37. Medicare was a federal health. care .benefit program, 

21 affecting commerce, that provided benefits to persons who were 

22 over the age of 65 or disabled. Medicare was administered by 

23 the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS"), a 

24 J;ederal agency under the United States Department of Health and 

25 Human Services ("HHS") .. Individuals who received benefits under 

26· Medicare were referred to as Medicare "beneficiaries." 

27 Medicare Part B 

28 38. Medicare Part B covered, among other things, medically 

9 
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1 necessary physician services and medically necessary outpatient 

2 tests ordered by a physician. 

3 39. Health care providers·, including doctors and clinics, 

4 could receive direct reimbursement from Medicare by applying to 

5 Medicare and receiving a Medicare provider number. By signing 

6 the provider application, the doctor agreed to abide by Medicare 

7 rules and regulations, including the Anti-Kickback Statute (42 

s u.s· .. c. § 1320a-7b(b)), which prohibits the knowing ·and willful 

9 payment of remuneration for the referral of Medicare patients. 

10 40. To obtain payment for Part B services, an enrolled 

11 physician or clinic, using its. Medicare provider number, would 

12 submit claims to Medicare, certifying that the information on 

13 the claim form was truthful and accurate and that the services 

14 provide(! were reasonable and. necessarY. to. th'3 he.al th of the> 

15 Medicare beneficiary. 

16 41. Medicare ·Part B generallypaid 80% of the Medicare 

17 allowed amount for .Physician se:i::yices and outpatie!lttests. _ The 

18 remaining 20% was·a co-payment for. which the Medicare 

19 beneficiary or a ·secondary insurer was responsible. 

20 Medicare Part D 

21 42. Medicare Part D provided coverage for outpatient 

· 22 prescription drugs through qualified private insurance plans 

23 that receive reimbursement from Medicare. 
' 

Beneficiaries 

24 enrolled under Medicare Part B could..obtain Part D benefits by 

25 enrolling with any one of many qualified PDPs. 

26 43. To obtain payment for prescription drugs provided to 

27 such Medicare beneficiaries, pharmacies would submit their 

28 claims for payment to the beneficiary's PDP. The beneficiary 

10 
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1 .would be responsible for any deductible or co-payment required 

2 under his PDP. 

3 44. Medicare PDPs, including those offered by 

4 UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company, Health Net Life Insurance 

5 Company, Anthem Insurance Companies, and Unicare Life and Health 

6 Insurance Company, are heal th care benefit programs,. af.fecting 

7 commerce, under which outpatient prescription drugs are provided 

s to Medicare beneficiaries. 

9 45. Medicare.PDPs commonly provided plan participants with 

10 identification cards for use in obtaining prescription drugs. 

11 The Medi-Cal Program 

12 46. Medi-Cal was a health care benefit program, .affecting 

13 commerce, that provided reimbursement for medically necessary 

1.4 health care .sE;>rvices to indigent .pel'.;"sons, in California. Funding 

. 15 for Medi-Cal was shared between thE) federal goVel'.;"nment'and the 

16 State of California. 

17 .. · 47. TJle California Department of Health Care Services 

18 ("CAL-DHCS") administered the Medi~Cal program. CAL.-DHCS 

19 .authorized provider participation, determined beneficiary 

20 eligibility,· issued Medi-Cal cards to beneficiaries, and 

21 promulgated regulations for the.administration of the program. 

22 48. Individuals who qualified for Medi-Cal benefits were 

23 referred to as "beneficiaries." 

24 49. Medi-Cal reimbursed physicians and other health care 

25 providers for medically necessary treatment and services 

26 rendered to Medi-Cal beneficiaries. 

27 50. Health care providers, including doctors and 

28 pharmacies, could receive direct reimbursement from Medi-Cal by 

11 
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1. applying to Medi-Ca·l and receiving a Medi-Cal provider number. 

2 51. To obtain payment for services, an enrolled provider, 

3 using its unique provider number, would submit claims to Medi-

4 Cal certifying that the information on the claim form was 

5 truthful and accurate and that the services provided were 

6 reasonable and necessary to the health of the Medi-Cal 

7 beneficiary. 

s 52. Medi-Cal· provided coverage for the cost of some 

9 prescription drugs, but Medi-Cal required preauthorization in 

10 order to pay for oxycodone. 

11 53. Medi-Cal provided coverage for.medically necessary 

12 ultrasound tests ordered by a physician, but it would not pay 

13 separately for both an upper extremity study (ultrasound) and a 

14 .lower extremity study (ultrasound) performed on the same day. 

15 Ill -- - . 

16 Ill 

17 JI/ 
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1 COUNT ONE 

2 [21 u.s.c. § 846) 

3 54. The Grand Jury hereby repeats and re-alleges 

4 paragraphs 1 through 53 of this Second Superseding Indictment, 

5 as though fully set forth herein. 

6 A. OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

. 14 

15 

55 .. Beginning in or about August 2008, and continuing 

until in or about August 2010, within the Ceµtral District of 

California and elsewhere, defendants ASHOT SANAMIAN, GARRISON, 

BUDAGOVA, YOON, LIM, arid NGUYEN, along with co-conspirators. 

Mikaelian, Angelika Sanamian·,. Santiago, Dr. H; · Hovannisyan,. 

Pullam, Derderian, Khou, Cho, Tran, and Smith,. and others known 
' 

and unknown to the Grand Jury, conspired and agreed with each 

other to knowingly and_ intentionally distribute and divert . 

oxycodone __ in theform_dfO~yCdnti~, _a Schedulf!Tr·nargotid drug;· __ 
. . 

16 ·outside the course of us11al medical practice and f.or no · 

. 17 legitimate me~ic;al p_\lrPPS<o,_ in .violation of 21 U\ S ,<:; .• 

18 §§ 841 (a) (1) and 841(h) (1) (C}. · · 

19 B. MEANS BY WHICH THE OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY WAS TO BE 

20 ACCOMPLISHED 

21 56. The object of the conspiracy was to be accomplished in 

22 substance as set forth in paragraphs 1-13 above and as follows: 

23 Co-conspirators Pullam, Suarez, smith, and other 

24 Cappers, would recruit Medicare and Medi-Cal beneficiaries and 

25 other individuals to go to the Clinic by promises of cash, free 

26 medical care, or medications, and other inducements. 

27 b. Once the recruited patients were at the Clinic, 

28 co-conspirators Pullam, Suarez, Smith, and others would instruct 

13 
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1 the patients to sign intake forms provided at the Clinic and 

2 indicate that they suffered from various medical ailments. In 

3 many cases, the recruited patients would sign such forms without 

.4 completing them. 

5 c. In some cases, the recruited patients would sign 

6 .forms authorizing the Clinic to obtain prescribed medications 

7 from pharmacies for them and to do so without their presence . 

8 . d. After a recruited Medicare or Medi-Cal patient 

9 signed the forms, de·fendants GARRISON and BUDAGOVA, together. 

1 o w:i. th co·-conspira tors Santiago, Dr, H, or another individual 

.11 working at the Clini9, would meet briefly with the patient and 

12 issue a prescription for 90 pills of oxyContin somg strength, 

13. .regard.less of the patient's medical condition or history. 

14 e. · Defendants GAgRIEiON, BUDAVOGA, and co-

15. 9onspirators ·Santiago and Dr .. H would- write medical notes in the . . - ---- ' - . -- ·-··· - . '• - -- - - . ·: ' - -- . ' . - ,. " 

16 reCruited patients' medical files indicating that the recruited 

17 patie_nts required oxyC()ntin for pa,in; when in ;!;act, as these 

18 defendants then well knew, there was no medical necessity 

19 justifying the use of OxyContin by these recruited patients. 

20 f. Defendants GARRISON, BUDAGOVA, and co-

21 conspirators Santiago and Dr. F!, would also write and/or .sign 

22 prescriptions for Oxycontin for recruited patients who did not 

23 have Medicare or Medi-Cal coverage ("cash patients") and for 

24 patients who never actually visited the Clinic or had not . 

25 visited the Clinic on the dates recorded in the medical records, 

26 in some cases pre-signing such prescriptions. In some 

27 instances, the cash patients were individuals whose identities 

28 had been stolen. 

14 
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1 g. Defendants GARRISON, BUDAGOVA, and co-

2 conspirators Santiago and Dr. H, would also write and/or sign 

3 medical notes indicating that cash patients had been examined at 

4 the Clinic and required OxyContin for medical treatment, when in 

s fact, as defendants GARRISON, BUDAGOVA, and co-conspirators 

6 Santiago and Dr. H, then well knew, the patients had not been 

7 seen at the Clinic oh the date written in the medical notes 

a and/or there was no medical basis supporting the prescriptions 

9 of oxycontin for these individuals. 

10 h. On many occasions, one or more unknown co-

21· conspirators would forge cash patients' signatures.on forms 

12 authorizing the Clinic to obtain prescribed medications· from 

13 ·pharmacies for them, without their presence, or f.orge 

14 documentation indicating when.the patient had been see.n by a 
- -- - . - ., .. - . -- - '. . . ... ,_ - . --· - - - ' . 

15 licensed medical PJ;"Ofessional_. These forms were maintained in 

16 the cash patient files at the Clinic: 

17 i. Defendants ASHGT .. SANAMI_Jµil, and co~corispir<J,tors 

18 Hovannisyan, Pullam, Derderian, and· other Runners, would take 

19 recruited patients.and signed authorization forms, along with 

20 the OxyContin prescriptions, to the Subject Pharmacies as well 

21 as other pharmacies. 

22 j. Defendants YOON, LIM, NGUYEN, co-conspirators 

23 Cho, Tran, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, would 

24 dispense or cause to be dispensed the OxyContin to defendant 

25 ASHOT SANAMIAN, co~conspirators Hovannisyan, Derderian, and 

26 other Runners, or to the recruited patients, who·would in turn 

27 give the oxycontin to the Runners. 

28 k. For cash patients, patients who had Medi-Cal 

15 
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1 only, and, in many instances, patients who had Me.dicare Part D 

2 coverage, defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN, co-conspirators Hovannisyan, 

3 Derderian, and other Runners would pay the Subject Pharmacies 

4 the retail price of the OxyContin, approximately $900-$1300 per 

s prescription, in cash. For some Medicare Part D patients, 

6 pharmacists dispensed the OxyContin; including defendants YOON,. 

7 LIM, NGUYEN, and co-conspirator Cho, and the Subject Pharmacies 

a billed. the patients' PDP. For those. patients, defendant ASHOT 

9 SANAMIAN, co-conspirators Hovannisyari, ·Derderian, and the other 

10 Runners would either pay the co-payment amount or obtain the 

11 oxyContin without charge, 

12 Clinic.employees, including co~conspirators 

13 Mikaelian and Angelika Sanamian were also prescribed OxyContin 

14. by the Clinic's. do.cto.rs and. these prescriptiqns were filled by 

15 paying cash at. the Subject Pharmaci;e.s. 
. . 

16 m. However, to conceal the full extent of their 

17 · oxyContin sales, the Subj.ect Pl;mrmacies would. not alwaysc. bill 

1a- the PDP a:nd would not report a:ll the oxyContin prescriptions 

19 issued by the Clinic to CURES. 

20 n. once the oxyContin was dispensed, defendants 

21 ASHOT .SANAMIAN, YOON, co-conspirators Derderian, Hovannisyan, 

22 Pullam, and others known and unJ{nown to the Gra.nd Jury would 

23 give the oxyContin to co-conspirator Mikaelian. 

24 o. Co-conspirator Mikaelian and others known and 

25 unknown to the Grand Jury would then sell the oxyContin for 

26 between approximately $23 and $27 per pill. 

27 p. To dispose of cash proceeds generated from the 

28 sales of OxyContin without drawing scrutiny, defendant YOON 

16 
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l deposited and caused to be deposited proceeds from the sales of 

2 oxyContin into bank accounts in amounts less than $10,000 and, 

3 for at least one account then transferred the money into a 

4 Gemmel Pharmacy; Inc. bank account at a different bank. 

5 q. To dispose of cash proceeds generated from.the 

6 proceeds of oxycontin without drawing scrutiny, defendant LIM, 

7 co-conspirator Khou, and defendant NGUYEN, would structure 

8 ·deposits of cash proceeds from the sale of OxyContin by· 

9 regularly depositing the cash proceeds in amounts of $10,000 or 

10 less to evade bank reporting requirements. 

11 r. . Co~conspirators Mikaelian and Angelika Sahamian 

12 would use proceeds from the sale of oxyContin to gamble at 

13 ·Casinos, to purchase automobiles and jewelry, and to buy more 

14 QxyContin. 

15 c. OVERT ACTS 

16. 57. In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to accomplish 

l.i its object, defendants ASHO'I' SANAMIAN; GARRISON, BUDAGOVA, '(OQN, 

18 LIM, and NGUYEN; along with co-conspirators Mikaelian,. Angelika 

19 Sanamian, Santiago, Dr. H 1 Derderian, Hovannisyan, Pullam,. Cho, 

20 Khou, Tran, and Smith, together with others known and unknown to 

21 the Grand Jury, committed and willfully caused others to commit 

22 the following overt acts, among others, in the Central District 

23 of California and ·elsewhere:· 

24 Co-Conspirator Mikaelian 

25 Overt Act No. 1: On or about· November 2, 2009, co-

26 conspirator Mikaelian knowingly diverted and sold 17 bottles of 

27 OxyContin BOmg (approximately 1530 pills) to a confidential 

28 government informant ("CI-1"). 

17 
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1 Overt Act No. 2: On or about December 10, 2009, co-

2 conspirator Mikaelian knowingly diverted and sold five bottles 

3 of OxyContin 80mg (approximately 450 pills) to CI-1. 

4 Overt Act No. 3: .on or about December 5, 2 009, co-

5 conspirator Mikaelian inserted approximately $31,300 in cash 

6 into slot machines at. San Manuel Bingo & casino in Highland, 

7 California. 

8 overt Act No. 4: On or about January 18, 2010,. co-

9 conspirator Mikaelian inserted approximately $33,400 in cash 

10 into slot machines at San Manuel Bingo & Casino in Highland, 

11 California. 

12 overt Act No. 5: on or about February 10, 2010, co-

13 conspirator Mikaelian inserted approximately $24,820 in cash 

14 into .. slot machines at Sa)"l Manuel Bing9 & Casino in Highland, 

15 California. 

16 Co-Conspirator Angelika.Sanamfan 

17 overt Act No. 6: On or about Noyember 21 1 2_008, co-

18 conspirator Angelika Sanamian.obtained a Clinic prescription for 

19· oxycontin for herself and caused St. Paul's P):larmacy to dispense 

20 ·90 pills of OxyContin 80 mg on that prescription. 

21 overt Act No. 7: On or about April 4, 2009, co-conspirator 

22 Angelika Sanamian obtained a Clinic prescription·for OxyContin 

23 for herself and caused Mission Pharmacy to dispense 90 pills of 

24 oxyContin 80 mg on that prescription. 

2s overt Act No. s: on or about February 10·, 2010, co-

26 conspirator Angelika Sanamian inserted approximately $11,000 in 

27 cash into slot machines at San Manuel Bingo & Casino in 

28 Highland, California. 

. 18 
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l Overt Act No. 9: On or about February 26, 2010, co-

2 conspirator Angelika Sanamian inserted approximately $50,540 in 

3 cash into slot machines at Wynn Las Vegas in Las Vegas, Nevada. 

4 DEFENDANT ASHOT SANAMIAN 

5 overt Act No. 10: On or about June 16, 2009, defendant 

6 ASHOT SANAMIAN obtained 90 pills of OxyContin 80mg from Pacific 

7 Side Pharmacy, in Huntingto!'. Beach; California, in the name of 

8 recruited patient A.D. 

9 overt Act No. 11: On or about June. 1.6, 2009, dej:endant 

10 ASHOT. SANAMIAN obtained 90 pills of OxyContin 80mg from Med 

11 Center Pharmacy, in Van ))[uys, California, in the name. of 

12 recruited patient D.A. 

13 overt Act No. 12: on or about September.is, 2009, 

14 ctefendant. ASHOT. SA.NAMIAN paid. approximately $1, 2 90, _to Cplonia,l .·-
- - - --

15 Pharmacy for 90 pi,lls lal;Jeled · OxyContin BOmg_ in the name Of._ 

16 recruited patient J.T. 

17 Overt_Act No. 13: _On.or aboµt_ September 18, 2Q0_9,_ 

18 defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN obtained 90 pills labeled Oxy_Contin . 

19 80mg from Huntington Pharmacy ·in San Marino,. California, in the 

20 name of recruited patient D.O. 

21 Overt Act No. 14: On or about September 18, 2009, 

22 defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN obtained 90 pills of OxyContin 80mg 

23 from Huntington Pharmacy, San Marino, California, in the name of 

24 recruited patient A.A. 

25 Co-Conspirator Santiago 

26 Overt Act No. 15: On or about December 16, 2008, co-

27 conspirator Santiago issued a prescription for 90 pills of 

28 OxyContin 80mg in the name of recruited patient R.H. 

19 
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1 overt Act No. 16: On or about March 26, 2009, co-

2 . conspirator Santiago allowed a prescription for 90 pi;l.ls of 

3 OxyContin 80mg in the name of recruited patient A.A. to be 

4 issued in co-conspirator Santiago's name and thereafter signed 

5 the patient's chart. 

6 DEFENDANT GARRISON 

7 overt Act No. 17: Ori or about March 3, 2009, defendant 

8 GARRISON wrote medical notes in co-c.onsp.irator Derderian' s 

9 medical chart and prescribed, under co-conspirator Santiago's 

10 prescription, 90.pills of.OxyContin 80mg in co-conspirator 

11 .Derderian's name. 

12 overt Act No. 18: On or about March 26, 2009, defendant 

13 GARRISON wrote medical notes in recruited patient A.A.'s medical 

14 chart and presc;ribect. urn'.!er cocconspirator Santiago's, 

15 prescript~on; 90 p~lls of 6xyc;tmtin 80mg in_ the name _of 

16 recruited patient A.A . 

. 17 overt Act· No. 19: __ on. :or_ about May_J,8, _ 2009, defendant. 

18. GARRISON wrote medical notes in recruited patient _R.H.' f! medical 

19 ·chart an.d prescribed, under co-conspirator Santiago's 

20 prescription, 90 pills of OxyContin 80mg in the name of 

21 recruited patient R.H,. 

22 Overt Act No. 20: On or about August 3, 2009, defendant 

23 GARRISON wrote medical notes in recruited patient V.F.'s medical 

24 chart and prescribed, under co-conspirator Santiago's·· 

25 prescription, 90 pills of oxycontin 80mg·in the name of 

26 recruited patient V.F. 

27 Overt Act No. 21: On or about January 13, 2010, defendant 

28 GARRISON saw recruited patient C.P. and prescribed, under a 

20 

., 
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1 Clinic doctor's prescription, 90 pills of OxyContin 80ing in the 

2 name of recruited patient C.P. 

3 Co-Conspirator Dr. H 

4 overt Act No. 22: On or about April 16, 2009, co-

5 conspirator Dr. H issued a prescription of 90 pills of OxyContin 

6 80mg in the name of recruited patient G.G. 

7 Overt Act No. 23: On or about June 23, 2009, co-

8 conspirator Dr. H issued a prescription of 90 pills o! OxyContin 

9 80mg in the name of recruited patient G.G. 

10 overt Act No. 24: On or about July 14, 2009, co-

.11 conspirator Dr. H. issued a .prescription of 90 pills of OxyContin 

12 80mg· in the name of recruited patient G.G .. 

13 Co-Conspirator Hovannisyan 

14 overt Act No. 25: On or about S.eptem))er 2!j, 2009, co-

15 conspirator Il'.ovannisyan pi_c]l:ed up oxyContin .at Mission Pharmacy 

16 and delivered the.oxyContin to co-conspirator Mikaelian. 

17 overt Act No. 26: ·on or about September 28.; 2009, co-

18 conspirator Hovannisyan picked up OxyContin at.Avalon Pharmacy 

19 in. Wilmington, California, and delivered th,e OxyContin to co-

20 conspirator Mikaelian. 

21 overt Act No. 27: On or about October 26, 2009, co-

22 conspirator Hovannisyan picked up oxyContin dispensed in the 

23 names of recruited Clinic patients at Better Value Pharmacy, in 

24 west Covina, California, and delivered the OxyContin to co-

25 conspirator Mikaelian. 

26 Overt Act No. 28: On a date unknown, but between in and 

27 about September 2008, and in and about May 2009, co-Conspirator 

28 Hovannisyan accompanied recruited patients to a pharmacy in 

21 
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1 order to obtain OxyContin. 

2 

3 Co-Conspirator Derderian 

4 Overt Act No. 29: On a date unknown, but between in or 

5 about September 2008< and in or abcut May 2009, co-conspirator 

6 Derderian accompanied recruited patients to a pharmacy in order 

7 to obtain OxyContin. 

8 Co-Conspirator Pullam 

9 Overt Act No. 30: On or about December 8, 2008, co" 

10 conspirator Pullam obt.ained a prescription in his own name for 

11 90 pills of OxyContin BOmg from co-conspirator Santiago. 

12 Overt Act No. 31: On or about January 7, 2009, co-

13 .conspirator Pullam obtained a prescription in his own name for 

14 90 pills of oxyContin 80mg st:J;"ength froin co~conspirator . 
.. 

15 SaI'.ltiago. · 

16 Overt Act No.· 32: On or about January 13, 2010, co-

17 aonspira_tor Pul .. lam paici recruiteq Riitient. C. p, · $300. for 90 pills. 

18 of OxyContiu 80mg. 

19 Co-Conspirator Smith 

20 Overt Act No. 33: On or about January 13, 2010,. co-

21 consRirator Smith offered t9 pay recruited patient C.P. $500 to 

22 obtain a prescription for OxyContin using patient C.P.'s 

23 Medicare Part D coverage. 

24 Overt Act No. 34.: On or about January 13, 2010, co-

25 conspirator Smith wrote "back pain" on recruited patient C.P.'s 

26 medical intake form at the Clinic. 

27 overt Act No. 35: .on or about June 18, 2009, co-

28 conspirator Smith offered to pay recruited patieut E.D. $30 to 

22 
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1 go to the Clinic and receive a prescription for OxyContin. 

2 Overt Act No. 36: On or about December 16, 2008, co-

3 conspirator smith offered to pay re.cruited patient R.H. between 

4 $50 and $100 to go to the Clinic and receive a prescription for 

5 oxyContin. 

6 DEFENDANT BUDAGOVA 

7 overt Act Nos. 37-41: On or about July 6, 2009, August 5, 

8 2009, September 1, 2009, September 29, 2009, and October 19, 

9 2009, defendant BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated information in 

·10 recruited patient L.H.'s medical chart. 

11 Overt Act Nos. 42-43: on or about April 6, '2009, and 

12 August 20, 2009, defendant BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated information 

13 in rec.rui ted patient R. H, 's medical chart. 

14 overt Act Nos. 44-46: on or about June i~, 2009, .July.27, 
- - - -

15 2009, and August24, 2009, defen<iant BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated 

16 information in recruited patient G.M.'s medical chart. 

17 Overt Act Nos, 47-48: On or abou.t September 1,4, .2009, and. 

18 October: 13, 2009, defendant BUDAGOVA wrote· fabricated 

19 information in recruited patient E.D.'s meqical chart. 

2 O DEFENDANT YOON 

21 Overt Act No. 49: On or about June 28, 2009, defendant 

22 YOON dispensed or .caused· to be dispensed 90 pills of OxyContin 

23 80mg in the name of recruited patient G.G. 

24 Overt Act No. 50: Between on or about June 30, 2009, and 

25 on or about October 19, 2009, defendant YOON dispensed or caused 

26 to be dispensed five bottles of 90 pills each of oxyContin 80mg 

27 to co-conspirator Mikaelian. 

28 overt Act No. 51: Between on or about August 30, 2009, and 

23 
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1 on or about September 17, 2009, defendant YOON dispensed or 

2 caused to be dispensed three bottles of 90 pills each of 

3 oxyContin BOmg to co-conspirator Smith. 

4 Overt Act No. 52: Between on or about September 18, 2009, 

5 and on or about December 23, 2009, defendant YOON dispensed or 

6 caused to be dispensed four bottles of 90 pills each of 

7 OxyContin 80mg in the name ·of recruited patient E.D. 

8 overt Act No. 53·: on or about November 11, 2009, defendant 

9 YOON knowingly dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pills each 

10 of oxyContin 80mg to c·o-conspirator Mekteryan, 

11 overt Act No. 54: on or about.November 12, 2009, defendant 

12 YOON dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pills each of 

13 OxyContin BOmg to co-conspirator Hovannisyan. 

14. Overt Act No.. 55: O_n or about SE3ptember 14, 200·9, 

15 defe!!dant YOON wrote· check.number 10004 2ayable to Gemmel 

16 Pharmacy, Inc. ir:i the amount of $28,o'oo from Nara Account 1. 

17 Overt Act: .Jl!o. 56: Qn or about S.eptember 14, 2009, . 

18 defendant YOON deposited or caused t(l be deposited check.number 

19 10004 payable to ·Gemmel Pharmacy, Inc. ·in the amount of. $28,000 

20. from Nara Account 1 into Wilshire Account 1-. 

21 Overt Act No. 57: On or about September 22, 2009, 

22 defendant YOON wrote check number 1o'oo1 payable to Gemmel 

23 Pharmacy, Inc. in the amount of $14,000 from Nara Account 1. 

24 Overt Act No. 58: On or about September 22, 2009, defendant 

25 YOON deposited or caused to be deposited check number 10001 

26 payable to Gemmel Pharmacy, Inc. in the amount of $14,000 from 

27 Nara Account 1 into Wilshire Account 1. 

28 overt Act No. 59: On or about October 22, 2009, defendant 

24 
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1 YOON wrote check number 10005 payable to Gemmel Pharmacy, Inc,. 

2 in the amount of $17,000 from Nara Account 1. 

3 Overt Act No. 60: · On or about October 23, 2009, defendant 

4 YOON deposited or caused to be deposited check number 10005 

5 payable to Gemmel ·Pharmacy, Inc. in the amount of $17,000 from 

6 Nara-. Account 1 into Wilshire Account 1. 

7 Overt Act Nos. 61-62: On or about April 27, 2010, and 

s August ·19, 201~, defendant YOON dispensed or caused to be 

9 dispensed two bottles of oxyContin 80mg in the name of recruited 

10 patient A.G. 

11· DEFENDANT LIM 

12 Overt Act Nos. 63-65: On or about July 17, 2009, August 

13 21, 2009, and. September 18, 2009, defendant LIM dispensed or 

14 caused to be dispensed .three bottles, of· 90 cpills each of 
. - . -- . 

15 oxyContin 801)1g in the name q:I; recruite<,'l:pa.tieht Q,G. 

16 Overt. Act Nos. 66-67: On or about July 27, 2009., and 

.. J..7 September 18., . 2009, defendant. LIM. dispensed or caused. to be ... --(° 

18 dispensed. two bott:.les of 90 pills each of. OxyContin 80mg in· the 

19 name of recruited patient A.A. 

20 Overt Act Nos. 68-69: On or about July 28, 2009, and 

21 September 18, 2009, defendant LIM dispensed or caused to be 

.22 dispensed two bottles of 90 pills each of OxyContin SOmg in the 

23 name of recruited patient D.O. 

24 Overt Act No. 70: on or about November 27, 2009, defendant 

25 LIM dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pills of OxyContin 

26 SOmg in the name of recruited patient D.P. 

27 Overt Act No. 71: On or about April 16, 2010, defendant 

28 LIM dispensed or caused to be dispensed one bottle of 90 pills 

25 
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1 of oxyContin 80mg in the name of recruited patient K.A. 

2 

3 Co-Conspirator Khou 

4 Overt Act No. 72: On or about August 5, 2009," co-

5 .conspirator Khou made or caused three separate deposits of cash 

6 .in the amounts $2,377, $8,000, and $8,040 into Chase Account 1. 

7 Overt Act No .. 73: On or about August 6, 2009.1 co-

8 consp1rator Khou made o:i: caus<0d three separate deposits of cash 

9 in the amounts of $2,000 1 $2,726, and $8,000 into Chase Account 

10 1. 

11 Overt Act No·, 74: 1on or about September 5, 2009; ·CO-

12 

13 

14 

rs 

16 

conspirator Khou made or caused four separate deposits of cash 

in the amounts of $3,741 and $9,000 into Chase·Account 1, $9,000 

into Chase Account 2, .and. $7-, ooo. into. Chase Acoount 3. - - - - - - - . . 

overt· Act No. 75: · On or about s.epternber 24, 2009, C::C>:

conspirator Khou made or caused two separate· deposits of cash in 

17 the.amounts of.$9,000 intoChaJ'le.ACcount 1 and.$9,00.0intoChase 
.. -- ' . 

18· Account. 2. 

19 overt Act No. 76: On.or about September 2.S, 2009, co-

20· conspirator Khou deposited or caused to be deposited cash in the 

21 amount of $9,000 into Chase Account 1. 

22 overt Act No. 77:· On or about September 26, 2009, co-

23 conspirator Khou made or caused three separate cash deposits in 

24 the amounts of $4,000 and $4,320 into Chase Account 1 and $9,000 

25 into Chase Account 2. 

26 Overt Act No. 78: On or about October 13, 2009, co-

27 conspirator Khou deposited or caused to be deposited cash in the 

28 amount of $9,000 into HSBC Account 1. 

26 



ase 2:11-cr-00922-FMO Document 650 Filed 05/08/14 Page 27 of 53 Page ID #:6 36 

1 ·Overt Act No. 79: On or about October 14, 2009, co-

2 conspirator Khou deposited or caused to be deposited cash in the 

3 amount of $9,000 into HSBC Account 1. 

4 overt Act No. 80: On or about October 15, 2009, co-

:5 conspirator Khou deposited or caused to be deposited cash in the 

6 amount of $9,000 into HSBC Account 1. 

7. Overt Act No.· 81: On or about October 16, 2009, co-

s conspirato.r Khou deposited or caused to be deposited cash in the 

9 amount of $9,800 into HSBC Account 1. 

10 Co-Conspirator Cho 

11 Overt Act Nos. 82-86:. On or about July 15, 2009, August 

12 11, 2009, August 21, 2009, ·september 18, 2009, and November 18, 

13 2009-, co-conspirator Cho dispensed.or caused to be dispensed 

. 14 five bottle13 of 90 pills .each of o:x:ycpntin 80mg strength to:. 
. .. --· . . . . . . --· . . 

15 recruited patient R,J:!. _ 

16 Overt Act Nos. 87-91: On or about July 6, 2009, August 6, 

17 .2009., Septem):>er_ l., 20Q9, September 28 ,. 2009, and. November 18, 

1.8' 2009 .. co-conspirator Cho dispensed or caU$ed. to. be dispensed .. 

19 five bottles of 90 pills ea,.ch· of oxyContin 80mg strength to 

20 recruited patient J.M. 

21 Overt Act Nos. 92-96: On or about July 10, 2009, August 6, 

22 2009, September 1, 2009, September 28, 2009, and November 18, 

23 2009, co"conspirator Cho dispensed or caused to be dispensed 

24 five bottles of 90 pills each of oxycontin 80mg to recruited 

25 patient T.M. 

26 overt Act No. 97: On or about August 18, 2009, co-

27 conspirator Cho dispensed or caused to be dispensed one bottle 

28 of 90 pills each of oxyContin 80mg strength to recruited patient 

27 
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1 E.D. 

2 

3 - DEFENDANT NGUYEN 

4 overt Act No. 98: On or about November 21, 2008, defendant 

5 NGUYEN dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pills of OxyContin 

6 80mg to co-conspirator Mikaelian. 

7 overt Act No. 99: On or about November 21, 2008,.defendant 

a NGUYEN dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pills of OxyContin 

9 80mg to co-conspirator Angelika Sanamian. 

10 Overt Act Nos. 100-104: On or about March 20, 20_09, April 

11 16, 2009, June 23,. 2009, July 16, 2009, and August 27,. 2009, 

12 defendant NGUYEN dispensed or caused to be dispensed five 

13 bottles. of 90 pills of oxyContin 80mg to recruited patient G.G. 

14 · Overt. Act No. 105: _On or about January 28; 2009,: 

_ 1.!? defend~nt_ N<;~uYEN mcide. or caµseid two, i;,eparate c;it;Jp9Sits ·of cash_ .in 

16 the amount of $10,000 into Bank of America Account .1 and $10,000 

.17 intp _Bank of_ America Account 2. 

18 . Overt Act Jllc;>. 106: _. On-_ or about August 19, 2009, defendant 

19 NGUYEN made or_caused.twoseparate deposits of cash in the 

20 amounts $9,0.00 and $10,000 into Bank of America Account.:).. 

21 Co-Conspirator Tran 

22 Overt·Act No. 107: On or about December 4, 2008, co-

23 conspirator Tran dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pills of 

24 OxyContin 80mg to recruited patient B.H. 

25 overt Act Nos. 108-111: on or about March 26, 2009, May 

26 30, 2009, June 25, 2009, and July 17, 2009, co-conspirator Tran 

27 dispensed or caused to be dispensed four bottles of 90 pills 

28 each of OxyContin 80mg strength to co-conspirator Hovannisyan. 

28 
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1 overt Act Nos. 112-114: on or about November 8, 2008, 

2 April 4, 2009, and July 2, 2009, co-conspirator Tran dispensed 

3 or caused to be dispensed three bottles of 90 pills each of 

4 OxyContin 80mg to co-conspirator Angelika Sanamian. 

5 overt Act Nos. 115-116: On or about December 19, 2008 and 

6 April 6, 2009, co-conspirator Tran dispensed or caused to be 

7 dispensed two bottles of 90 pills each of OxyContin 80mg to co-

8 conspirator Mikaelian. 

9· Overt Act No. 117: On or about April 2, 2009, defendant 

10 TRAN dispens.ed or caused to be dispensed one bottle of 90 pills 

11 .of oxyContin somg to co~conspiratorDerderian. 

12 Ill 

13 Ill 

.14 ( 11 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 
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22 

23 
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1 COUNT TWO 

2 [18 u.s.c. § 1349] 

3 58. The Grand Jury hereby repeats and re-alleges 

4 paragraphs 1 through 53, and Overt Acts Nos. 37 through 48 as 

s set forth in paragraph 57 of this Second Superseding Indictment, 

6 as though fully set forth herein. 

7 A. OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY 

8 59. Beginning i.n or about August 2008, and continuing 

9 until in or about February 2010, within the Central District of 

10 California and elsewhere, defendant BUDAGOVA, together with co-

11 conspirators Angelika Sanamian, Santiago., Shishalovsky, Suarez, 

12 Mekteryan, and Smith, and others kn0 wn and unknown to the Grand 

13 Jury, knowingly combined, conspired, and agreed to execute a 

.14 scheme. to .. defraud a healtb care.);>enefit prog:i;:<j.m, ·namely. Medicare 

15 Part B and Medi~Cal,. in yiolationof 18~.Q.S.C. § 1347. 

16 B. · · MEANS BY WHICH THE OB.JECT OF THE. CONSPIRACY WAS TO BE 

1.7 ACCOMPLISHED 
, 

18 · 60. · The object of the conf;fpiracy was darrie.d out, and to. 

19 be carried out, in substance, as· set forth in paragraphs 1 

20 through 13. and 57 of this Second superseding Indictment and as 

21 follows: 

22 a. Co-conspirator Angelika Sanamian would recruit or 

23 instruct others to recruit doctors, including co-conspirator 

24 Santiago, to work at the Clinic. 

25 b. Co-conspirator Santiago and the other doctors 

26 would· submit provider applications to Medicare and Medi-Cal and 

27 obtain Medicare and/or Medi-Cal provider numbers that enabled 

28 the Clinic to submit claims in their names. 

30 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

c. 

conspirator 

the billing 

doctors. 

d. 

The provider applications would designate co

Angelika Sanamian as the contact person and A & A as 

entity for co-conspirator Santiago and other Clinic 

Co-conspirator Santiago and others at the Clinic 

· 6 .would write orders for unnecessary medical tests and procedures 

7 for the recruited patients who were Medicare arid Medi-Cal 

8 beneficiaries. 

9 e. Unknown individuals at the Clinic would.perform 

10 tests on recruited patients before any medical examination was 

11 .conducted or following a cursory examination that did not 

12 provide a basis for performing· the tests. 

13 f. Co-conspirator Mekteryan would perform 

14 unnecessary ultrasound tests on reci::uited patients .. 

15 g. ·nefenda~t ~UDAGOVA, and co-ccmspirators Angelika .· 

16 Sanamian, Mekt.eryan and Sh:ishalovsky, would create false 

17 clinical records to malrn it appear as .if_ leg_itimate and. 

18 necessary med.ical services had been performed on the recruited. 

19 patients. 

20 h. Co-conspirator Angelika Sanamian, through A & A, 

21 would submit false and fraudulent claims to Medicare and Medi" 

22 Cal related to the recruited patients for medical services that 

23 were not medically necessary and/or not performed as represented 

24 in the claims, including: 

25 i. Claims for office visits with physicians 

26 that either did not take p!ace or were shorter and more 

27 superficial than represented in the claims; 

28 ii. Claims for NCVs, electrocardiograms, 

31 
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1 ultrasounds, and other tests and procedures that were not in 

2 fact performed: 

3 
iii. Claims for ultrasounds purportedly performed 

4 one or a few days apart, on dates when the beneficiary was not 

5 in fact at the Cl.inic to be tested. 

6 iv. Claims for tests and procedures that had 

i not been ordered by a physician. 

8 
Medicare Part B and Medi-Cal would pay some of 

9 the .false and fraudulent claims. 

10 c. OVERT.ACTS. 

11 61 .. In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to accomplish· 

12 its object, defendant BUDAGOVA,. together with co-conspirators 

13 Angelika Sanamian, Santiago, .suarez, Mekteryan, and Shishalovsky 

14. and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, c.ommitted and· 

15 willfully. caused otfwJ'.'s, to commit Oyert A()t NoiL. 37, thr_oµg,h 48 

16 ·as set. forth in .paragraph 57 of .this Second Superseding 

1 7 Indictment, and the following.· ov13rt. acts, amqng gtj::J,e;rs, in the . 

18 Central District of California and .. elsewhere: 

· 19 Recruited Patient B. Ii: .. 

20 Overt Act No. 118: On or about April 29, 2009, co-

21 conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medicare for· 

22 services allegedly provided to recruited patient B.H. on March 

23 5, 2009, specifically, a Level 3 (approximately 30 minute face-

24 to-face) office visit with co-conspirator Dr. H, a duplex scan, 

25 and venipuncture. 

26 Recruited Patient D.P. 

27 overt Act No. 119: On or about June 25, 2009, co-

28 conspirator Shishalovsky confirmed recruited patient D.P.'s 
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1 Medicare and Medi-Cal eligibility. 

2 Overt. Act No. 120: On or about July 7, 2009, co-

3 conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medicare for 

4 services allegedly provided to recruited patient D.P. on June 

s 25, 2009, including a Level 3 office visit with co-conspirator 

6 Dr. H, a duplex scan ultrasound, an ECG, and an NCV. 

7 overt Act No. 121: On or before July 7,, 20.09, co-

s conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medicare for 

9 services allegedly provided to recruited patient p.P. on June 

10 26, 2009, specifically, a duplex scan (lower) ultrasound test. 

11 Overt Act No. 122: On or about September 1, 2009, co-

12 conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medicare for 

13 services allegedly provided to recruited patient D;P, on August 

.14: 27, 2009, including a Level 3 office. visit with co-conspirator 

15 Dr. H, an ampl.itude and latency study;. and an NCV. 

16 Recruited Patient E.D. 

17 Overt Act No. 123: . On o* abou_t_ June .18, 2009, co~ 

18 conspirator Shishalovsky confirmed- recruited patient E.D.'S 

19 Medi-Cal eligibility. 

20 overt Act No. 124: On or J:;efore July 13, 2009, co-

21 conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

22 services.allegedly provided to recruited patient E.D. on June 

23 18, 2009, including a Level 3 office vi13it with co-conspirator 

24 Santiago, an EKG, ultrasounds and a breathing.capacity test. 

25 Overt Act No. 125: On or before July 13, 2009, co-

26 conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

27 services allegedly provided to recruited patient E.D. on June 

.28 19, 2009, including an NCV. 
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1 overt.Act No. 126: on or before September 8 1 2009, co-

2 conspirator Angelika .Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

3 services allegedly provided to recruited patient E.D. on August 

4 14, 2009, including a Level 3 office visit with co-conspirator 

5 Santiago,. an EKG, and pulmonary function tests. 

6 Overt Act No. 127: On or about September 14, 2009, co-

7 conspirator Mekteryan created or altered an ultrasound test 

8 result for recruited patient E.D. 

9 overt Act No. 128: On or about September 14,_ 2009., 

10 def<;indant BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated information in recruited 

11. patient E. D. ' s medical chart. 

12 Overt Act No. 129·, On or before October 5, 2009, co-

13 

14 

conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

services allegedlyprovided to_ recruited patient.E.D .. on . - . . -- . . . : - - . . ~. - . . ' - . -··-- -

15 September 14, 2009, specif_ically; a i:,evel 3 office visit with 

16 co-conspirator Santiago, and an extremity study (ultrasound) . 

17 Overt Act No. 130: on_9r before October 5, 2009, co.-

18 conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted. a claim to Medic_Cal for_ 

19 services allegedly provided to recruited patient E.D. on. 

20 September 15, 2009, specifically an extremity study 

21 (ultrasound). 

22 Overt Act No. 131: On or about October 13, 2009,, defendant 

23 BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated information in recruited patient 

24 E.D.'s medical chart. 

25 Overt Act No. 132: On or before November 9, 2009, co-

26 conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

27 services allegedly provided to recruited patient E.D. on October 

28 13, 2009, specifically an extremity study (ultrasound), 
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1 

2 Recruited Patient R.H. 

3 overt Act No. 133: On or about January 8, 2009, co-

4 conspirator Shishalovsky confirmed recruited patient R.H.'s 

5 Medi-Cal eligibility. 

6 Overt Act No. 134: On or before March 16, 2009, co-

7 conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

8 services allegedly provided to recruited patient R.H. on March 

9 3, 2009, including a Level 3 office visit with co-conspirator 

10 Santiago. 

11 overt Act No. 135: on or about April 6, 2009, co-

12 conspirator Santiago approved the ordering of an NCV for 

13 recruited patient R,H., a Medi-Cal beneficiary. 

14 overt Act No. 136: ·.On or about April 6, 2009, defendant 

15 -BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated information in Tecruited patient 

16 R.H. 's mediaai chart. 

1 7 Overt Act No. i3 7: _On Qr before April _27, _ 2_Q0.9, co-

18 conspirator_ Angelika Sanam~ansubmitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

19 services allegedly provided to recruited patient R;H. on April 

2 o 6 ,_ 2 00 9, specifically, a Level 3 office visit with co-

21 co_nspirator Santiago, an NCV, and. ultrasound tests. 

22 Overt Act No. 138: On or before April 27, 2009, co-

23 conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a. claim to Medi-Cal for 

24 services allegedly provided to recruited patient R.H. on April 

25 7, 2009, specifically a visceral vascular study. 

26 Overt Act No. 139: On or about August 20, 2009, defendant 

27 BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated information in.recruited patient 

28 R.H.'s medical chart. 
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1 overt Act No. 140: On or before September 8, 2009, c.0-

·2 conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

3 services allegedly provided to recruited patient R.H. on August 

4 20, 2009, specifically, .a lower extremity study (ultrasound). 

5 Recruited Patient L.H. 

6 Overt Act No. 141: On or about June 9,. 2009, co-

7 conspirator Mekteryan created or altered an ultrasound test 

8 result for recruited patient L.H. 

9 Overt Act No. 142: On or before October 5, 2009; co-

10 conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal.for 

11 services allegedly provided to recruited patient L.H. on Jurie 9, 

12 2009, including Level 3 office visit with co-conspirator 

13 Santiago, an EKG, and extremity study (ultrasound). 

14 Overt Act. No. 143: On or before October 5, 2009, cg-

15 conspir<:-torAngelikaSanamian submitted~clairtt.to l'!edi-Cal for 

16 services allegedly provided to recruited patient .L.H. on June 

17 10, 2_0_09, specifically, an 13xtremity study (ulJ:i:-asound) . 

18 Additional Acts 

19 overt Act No. 144: on or abollt August 19, ·20Q9, co-

20 conspirator Suarez promised a confidential government informant 

21 (hereiriafter "CI2"), a Medi-Cal beneficiary, $30 to go to the 

22 qlinic for unnecessary medical care. 

23 overt Act No. 145: on or about September 29, 2009, co-

24 . conspirator Suar.ez informed an undercover officer that co-

25 conspirator Suarez would pay the undercover officer $10 for each 

26 "patient" profile the undercover officer referred to the Clinic 

27 and $40 for the use of the undercover officer's Medi-Cal card. 

28 Overt Act No. 146: On or about May 8, 2009, co-conspirator 
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1 Smith promised recruited patient R.B., a Medi-Cal beneficiary, 

2 $25 to go to the Cl~nic. 

3 Overt Act No. 147: On or about May 8, 2009, co-conspirator 

4 Smith instructed recruited patient R.B., a Medi-Cal beneficiary, 

5 to "come back" to the Clinic another time· for more money. 

6 Ill 
1 Ill 
s Ill 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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1 

2 

COUNT THREE 

(18 u.s.c. §§ 1349, 2] 

3 62. The Grand Jury hereby repeats and re-alleges 

4 paragraphs 1 through 53, 56, and 60; overt .Act Nos. 28, 29 and 

5 33, as set forth in paragraph 57 of this Second Superseding 

6 Indictment,·as though fully set forth herein. 

7 A. OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY 

a 63. Beginning in or about August 2008 and continuing until 

9 in or about February 2010, within the Central District and 

10 elsewhere, defendants ASHOT SANAMIAN, YOON, LIM, and.NGUYEN, 

11. together with co-corispiratorsMikaelian, Hovannisyan, Pullam, 

12 Derderian, Cho, and Smith, and others known and unknown to the 

13 Grand Jury, combined, conspired, and agreed to execute·a scheme 

14 to defraud a health' care benefit pro!3-ram 1. namely Medica:i:;e Part. D 

15 and Part D PDPs,. in violation of 18 u.s.c. § 1347. 

16 B .. MEANS BY WHICH THE OBJECT OF THE.CONSPIRACY WAS '1'0 BE 

1 7 ACCOMPLISHED -

18 64. The object of the conspiracy was. carried out, and was 

19 to be carried out, in substance, as <1et forth in paragraphs 1 

20 through 1.3, .57, 60 and 61 of this Second Superseding Indictment, 

21 and as follows: 

22 a. Defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN, and co-conspirators 

23 Hovannisyan, Pullam, Derderian, and Smith, and others known and 

.24 unknown to the.Grand Jury, would provide and cause recruited 

25 beneficiaries to provide information regarding their Medicare 

26 Part D coverage, such as PDP identification cards, to pharmacies 

27 filling their OxyContin prescriptions, including pharmacies 

28 owned and/or operated by defendants YOON, LIM, and NGUYEN and 
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1 co-conspirator Cho. 

2 b. The pharmacies, including the Gemmel Ph"'rmacies, 

3 Better Value Pharmacy, Huntington Pharmacy, and St. Paul's 

4 Pharmacy, owned and/or operated by defendants YOON, LIM, and 

5 NGUYEN, and co-conspirator Cho would submit or cause to be 

6 submitted claims to the PDPs for the OxyContin they dispensed to 

7 fill the prescriptions. 

8 c. The PDPs and Medicare .Part D would· pay some of 

9 the claims submitted. 

10 c. OVERT ACTS 

11 65 .. In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to accomplish 

12 its object, defendants ASHOT SANAMIAN, YOON, LIM, NGUYEN, 

13 together with co-conspirators Mikaelian, Hovannisyan, Pullam, 

14. D.erderian, Cho.and Smith, an.de.others known and unknown to the 
... -, 

·15 Grand Jury, commit;ted and willfu;Llyoaused others to commit 

16 O_vert Act Nos. 28 and 29, 33, 35·, and 36 as set forth in 

17 paragraphs_ .57 and 61, of thi? .second SupEir.seding Indictmetit: .. a.nd 

18 the following overt acts, a111ong· others, in_ the .Central District . 

19 of Californi& &nd elsewhere: 

20 Overt Act No. 148: On an unknown date after August 2008, 

21 and before on or about May 6, 2009, co-conspirator Mikaelian 

22 paid B.H., a recruited Medicare/Medi-Cal patient, $400 in order 

23 to obtain. a prescription for OxyContin. 

24 overt Act No. 149: On or about December 12, 2008, 

25 defendant NGUYEN dispensed or caused to be dispensed from St. 

26 Paul's 90 pills of OxyContin 80mg to recruited Medicare Part D 

27 beneficiary D.P. 

28 Overt Act No .. 150: On or about December 18, 2008, 
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1 defendant NGUYEN dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pills of 

2 OxyContin 80mg to recruited Medicare Part ? beneficiary B.H. 

3 overt Act Nos .. 151-153: on or about May 4, 2009, June 3, 

4 2009; and July 2, 2009, defendant YOON dispensed or caused to be· 

5 dispensed from Better Value three bottles of 90 pills each of 

6 oxyContin 80mg to recruited Medicare PartD. beneficiary S.D. 

7 Overt Act No. 154: On or about July 2, 2009, defendant LIM 

8 dispensed
0

or caused to be dispensed from Huntington Pharmacy 90 

9 pills·of oxyContin 80mg to recruited Medicare Part D beneficiari 

10 D.N. 

11 Overt Act No. 155: On or. about September 18, 2009, 

12 defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN provided Colonial Pharmacy, in Arcadia, 

13 California, with multiple PDP cards and other identifying 

14 .information belonging to recruited patients, at. the Clinic . 
. - . ·. - - . - - . . - - - . . . - . - ' -- .- ; --

15 overt Act Nos. 156-157: Oriol:' about octob~r 29, 2009. arid_ 

16 December 9, 2009 ,. co-conspirator Cho· dispensed or caused to be 

17 dispensed from B&B Pharmacy)lo p:i;lls of oxyContin 80mg strength 

18 to Medicare Part D beneficia:J'.'y L.J. 

19 Overt Act No. 158: ·On or about January 13, 2010, co-

20 conspirator Pullam paid recruited patient C.P. $7 to cover 

21 recruited patient C.P.'s Medicare Part D co-payment. 

22 /// 

23 /// 

24 /// 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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1 COUNTS FOUR THROUGH NINE 

2 [31 u.s.c. §§ 5324(a)(3), (d) (2); 18 u.s.c. § 2] 

3 66. The Grand Jury her.eby repeats and re-alleges paragraph 

4 1 through 53, 56, and overt Act Nos. 63 through 81 of paragraph 

5 57 of this Second Superseding Indictment, as though fully set 

6 forth herein. 

7 67. On or about the following dates, in Los Angeles 

8 County, within the C.entral District of California, and 
. 

9 elsewhere, defendant LIM and co-conspirator Khou, each aiding 

10 and abetting the other, knowingly, and for the purpose of 

11 evading the reporting requirements of Section 5313 (a)· of Title 

12 31, United States Code, and the regulations promulgated . 

13 thereunder, structured, assisted in structuring, and caused to 

14 be structure.a, _ the following transactions witli _Chase Bank, a_ 
- -

,,_ - .. . .. ··- ·- -.. 
' domestic financial institution, ... a,s J:Jart of_ a pattern of J,lleg_al 15 

16 activity involVing more than $100,000 in a 12~month period, and· 

while violating another law of .. the·United States: 
·, . 17 

. COUNT. 'DATE· TRANS.I\ CTI ON 
18 FOUR 08/04/2009 Cash deposits in the amounts of $1,662 and 

.. $9, 000 into Chase Account 1 · 
.FIVE 08/05/2009 Cash depositsirithe amounts of $2,.377, 

. $8;000, and $8,040 into Chase Account 1 
SIX 08/06/2009 Cash deposits in the amounts of $2,000, 

19 

20 
$2,726, and $8,000 into Chase Account 1 

SEVEN 09/05/2009 Cash deposits· in the amounts of $3,741 and 21 
$9,000 into. Chase Account 1, $9,000 into 
·Chase Account 2, and $7,000 into Chase 

. 22 
Account 3 

23 EIGHT 09/24/2009 Cash deposits in the amounts .of $9,000 into 
Chase Account 1 and $9,000 into Chase 
Account 2 24 

NINE 09/26/2009 Cash deposits in the amounts of $'(!,000 and 
$4,320 into Chase Account 1 and $9,000 into 25 
Chase Account 2 

.-
26 

27 

28 
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1 COUNTS TEN THROUGH FOURTEEN 

2 [31 U.S.C. §§ 5324(a) (3), (d) (2); 18 U.S.C. § 2] 

3 68. The Grand Jury hereby repeats and re-alleges paragraph 

4 1 through 53, 56, and Overt Act Nos. 98 through 106 of paragraph· 

5 57 of this Second Superseding Indictment, as though fully set 

6 forth herein. 

7 69. On or about the following dates, in Los Angeles 

8 County, within the Central District of California, and 

9 elsewhere, de,fendant NGUYEN, aided and abetted by others )mown 

10 and unknown t"o the Grand Jury, knowingly, and for the purpose of 

11 evading the reporting requirements of Section 5313(a) of Title 

12 31, United States Code, and the regulations promulgated 

13 thereunder, structured, assisted in structuring, and caused to 
' 

14 .be .structured, the f.ollowing. transactio:ns with Bank. of. America, . 

15 a dome(ltic financ:iarinst_itution, as part _of a: pa_tter11. of 

16 illegal activity involving mor.e than $100, 000 in a 12-month 

and.-.while violating_ another law:of the_ United States:. 
DATE TRANSACTION 
01/28/2009.. Cash deposits in the_ amounts of $10, ooo 

into Bank of America Accountl and $10,000 
into Bank of America Ac·count 2 

06/02/2009 Cash deposits in the amounts of $10,000 
into Bank of America Account 1 and $9,500 
into Bank of America Account 2 

06/03/2009 Cash deposits inthe amounts of $9,000 and 
$10, 000 into Ban·k of America Account 1 

07/28/2009 Cash deposits in the amounts of $10,000, 
$10,000, and $4,550 into Bank of America 
Account 1 

08/19/2009 Cash deposits in the amounts of $9,000 and 
$10.000 into Bank of America Account 1 
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1 COUNTS FIFTEEN THROUGH TWENTY-TWO 

2 [18 u.s.c. §§ 1957{a), 2] 

3 70. The Grand Jury hereby repeats and re-alleges paragraph 

4 1 through 53, 56, and Overt Act Nos. 49 and 62 of paragraph 57 

s of this Second Superseding Indictment, as though fully set forth 

6 herein .. 

7 71. on or about the following· dates, in Los Angeles 

8 County, W.ithin the Central District of .California, and· 

9 elsewhere, defendant YOON, together with others known and 

10 unknown to the Grand Jury, knowing that the funds involved 

11 represented the proceeds. of some form ?f unlawful activity, 

12 knowingly conducted, attempted to conduct, and caused others to 

13 conduct, the following monetary transactions in criminally 

14 de:r;ived, propertx of a v;;t:J,µe greater. than $l0, 00,0, which 
I • 

15 property, in fapt,. wa<! der:i,yed. from SPEici:tied 11nlawful activity, 

16 namely, the distribution and diversion of oxycodone in the form 

17 of OxyContin, a Scbedule .. II narcot.:i;c_drug, in. violation of .Title 

18 18, United States Code Sections_841{a) {1/ ,. and 841{J:>)(l) (C): 

19 
COUNT· 

20 FIFTEEN 

21 
SIXTEEN 

22 

23 SEVENTEEN 

24 
EIGHTEEN 

25 

26 NINETEEN 

27 

28 

.. 
DATE· 
09/14/2009 

09/22/2009 

10/22/2009 

12/08/2009 

01/06/2010 

TRANSACTION . 
Withdrawal of $28,000 from Nara Account 1 
by means of Check. #10004 payable to Gemmel 
Pharmacv, Inc . ·· 
Withdrawal of $14,000 from Nara.Account 1 
by means of Check #10001 payable to Gemmel 
Pharmacv, Inc. 
Withdrawal of $17,000 from Nara Account 1 
by means of Check #10005 payable to Gemmel 
Pharmacv, Inc. 
Withdrawal of $13,000 from Nara Account 1 
by means of Check #10010 payable to Gemmel 
Pharmacv, Inc. 
Withdrawal of $13,000 from Nara Account 1 
by means of Check #10013 payable to 
Gemmel, Inc. 
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1 COUNT DATE TRANSACTION 
TWENTY 01/21/2010 Withdrawal of $23,000 from Nara Account 1 

2 by me.ans of Check #10014 payable to Gemmel 
J?harmacv, Inc. 

3 TWENTY- 01/28/2010 Withdrawal of $17,000 from Nara Account 1 

ONE by means of Check #10015 payable to Gemmel 
4 l?harmacv, Inc. 

TWENTY- 02/12/2010 Withdrawal of $21,000 from Nara Account 1 
5 TWO by means of Check #10016 payable to Gemmel 

J?harmacv, Inc. 
6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

. 14 
. ····· 

' - . ' - . 

··-- . ·-· - - -- . -15 

16 -
17 ···-

.. 

18 . ' 

·. 
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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1 

2 

3 

4 1. 

FORFEITURE ALLEGATION I 

[21 u.s.c. § 853] 

[Conspiracy to Distribute Controlled Substances] 

The Grand Jury incorporates and re-alleges all o.f the 

5 allegations contained in the Introductory Allegations and Count 

6 One of the Second Superseding Indictment as though fully set 

7 forth in their entirety herein for the purpose· of alleging 

8 forfeiture pursu.ant to the provisions of Title 21, United States 

9 Code, Section 853. 

10 2. Each defendant convicted under Count One of this 

11 Second Superseding Indictment shall forfeit to the United States 

12 the following property: 

13 a. All right, title, and interest in any and all 

14 property 

15 (1) constituting, or derived from, _any pr()ceeds 

16 obtained, directly or indirectly, as a result of any such 

1 7 offense;. 

18 (2) any property used, or intended to b"': used, in any 

19 manner or part, to commit, or to facilitate the commission of 

20 any such offense; and 

21 b. A sum of money equal to the total value of the. 

22 property described in paragraph 2.a. If more than one defendant 

23 is found guilty of Count One, each such defendant shall be 

.24 jointly and severally liable for the entire .amount ordered 

25 forfeited pursuant to that count. 

26 3. Pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 

27 853(p), each defendant shall forfeit substitute property, up to 

28 the value of the total amount described in paragraph 2, if, as 
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1 the result of any act or omission of said defendant, the 

2 property described in paragraph 2, or any portion thereof (a) 

3 cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence; (b) has 

4 been transferred, sold to, or deposited with a third party; (c) 

5 has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court; (d) has 

6 been substantially diminished in value; or (e) has been 

7 commingled with other property which cannot be divided without 

8 difficulty. 

9 Ill 
10 Ill 
11 Ill 
12 

13 

14 

15" 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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1 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION II 

2 [18 U.S.C. § 981(a) (1) (C); 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c); 21 U.S.C. § 853] 

3 [Conspiracy to Commit ·Healthcare Fraud] 

4 1. The Grand Jury incorporates and re-alleges all of the 

5 allegations contained in the Introductory Allegations and Counts 

6 Two and Three of the Second Superseding Indictment above as 

7 though fully set forth in their· entirety herein for the purpose 

s of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provisions of- Title 18, 

9 United States Code, Section 98i (a) (1) (C); Title 28, United 

10 States Code, Section 2461_(c); -and Title 21, United States Code, 

11 section 853. 

12 2. Defendants BUDAGOVA, ASHOT SANAMIAN, YOON, LIM, and 

13 NGUYEN,, if convicted of any of the offenses charged in Counts 

14 Two or Th_ree of _the· Second Superseding Indictment, shalL forfeit 

15 to the United States the following property: ··- ~-- •. - ---- . -- --- .- . . - --- . - -- ---

16 a. All right, title, and interest in any and all 

17 _property, real or personal, whtch coristitutes or is de.rived. f.rom 

18 proceeds traceable to such. offenses;,_ and . 

. 19 .. b . A sum of money equal t"o the total amount. of 

20 proceeds derived from each such offense for which the defendant 

21 is convicted. If more than one defendant is found guilty of 

22 Count Three, each such defendant shall be jointly and severally 

23 liable for the entire amount· 'ordered forfeited pursuant to that 

24 count. 

,25 3. Pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 

26 853(p), as incorporated by Title 28, United States Code, Section 

27 246l(c), each defendant shall forfeit substitute property, up to 

28 the total value of the property described in paragraph 2 above, 
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1 if, by any act or omission of said defendant, the property 

2 described· in paragraph 2, or any portion thereof 1 (a) cann.ot be 

3 located upon the exercise of due diligence; (b) has been 

4 transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party; (c) 

5 has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court; (d) has 

6 been substantially diminished in value; or (e) has been 

7 commingled with other property that cannot be divided without 

8 difficulty. 

9 /// 

10 /// 

11 / // 

12 

13 

14 
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1 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION III 

2 [31 u.s.c. § 5317] 

3 [Structuring] 

4 
1. The Grand Jury incorporates and re-all.eges -all of the 

5 allegations contained in the Introductory Allegations and Counts 

6 Four through Fourteen of the Second Superseding Indictment above 

7 as though fully set forth in their entirety herein for the 

s purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provisions of 

9 Title 31, United States Code, Section 5317. 

10 2. Defendants LIM, KHOU, and NGUYEN, if convicted of any 

11 of the off ens!"'S charged in Counts Four through Fourteen of this 

12 Second Superseding Indictment, E!hall forfeit to the United 

13 States the following property: 

14 .a. All rigJ:it, title, and. interes,t in aµy and all 
·- - ' . -. 

15 property involved in the offense commi_t:ted iii vi_olatJon Qf Title_ _, 

16 31, united states code, Section 5324 (a) (3)·, for which the 

1 7 defendant is convicted" . a.nd _all pr.operty. traceable· to such: · 

18 proper_ty, inc_luding the following,: 

19 (1) all money or other property that was the 

20 subject of each transaction committed in violation of Title 31, 

21 united.States Code, section 5324(a) (3); 

·22 (2) all property traceable to money or property 

23 described in paragraph 2. a. ( 1) . 

24 b. A sum of money equal to the total amount of money 

25 invoived in the offense committed in violation of Title 31, 

26 United States Code, ·Section 5324 (a) (3), for which each defendant 

27 is. convicted. If more than one defendant is found guilty of any 

28 Counts Four through Fourteen, each such defendant shall be 

49 
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1 jointly and severally liable for the entire amount ordered 

2 forfeited pursuant to that count. 

3 3. Pursuant· to .Title 21, United States Code, Section 

4 853(p), as .incorporated by Title 31, United States Code, Section 

5 5317, each defendant shall forfeit substitute property, up to 

6 the value of the total amount described in paragraph 2, 'if, as 

7 the result of any act or omission of said defendant, the 

8 property described in paragraph 2, or any portion thereof (a) 

9 cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence1 (b) has 

10 been transferred, sold to; or deposited with a third party; (c) 

11 has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court;· (d) has 

12 been substantially diminished in value; or. (e) has been 

13 commingled with other property which cannot be divided without 

14. difficulty. 

15 Ill 

16 111 

17 111 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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1 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION IV 

2 [18 u.s.c. § 982(a) (l)] 

3 [Money Laundering] 

4 1. The Grand Jury incorporates and re-alleges all of the 

5 allegations contained in the Introductory Allegations and Counts 

6 Fifteen through Twenty-Two of the Second.Superseding Indictment 

7 above as though fully set forth in their entirety herein for.the 

8 purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provisions of 

9 Title 18, United States Code, Section 982 (a) (1) .. · 

10 2. Defendant YOON, if convicted of any of the offenses 

11 charged in Counts Fifteen through Twenty-TWO of this Second 

12 Superseding Indictment, shall forfeit to the United States the 

13 following property: 

14 a. All.right, title, and interest .in any and all. 
- . . . . . . - . . . - -

15 property involved in each offense committed in violation of. 

16. Title 18, United States Code, Section 1·957, or conspiracy to. 

17 commit such offense, for which the defendant is convicted, and 

18 all property traceable to such_property, including. the 

19 following: 

20 (1) all money or other property that was the 

21 subject of each transaction committed in violation of Title 18, 

22 United States Code, Section 1957; 

23 (2) all commissions, fees, and other property 

24 constituting proceeds obtained as a result o~ those violations; 

25 (3) all property used in any manner or part to 

26 commit or to facilitate the commission of those violations; and 

27 (4) all property traceable to money or property 

28 described in th.is paragraph 2.a. (1) to 2.a. (3). 
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1 b. A sum of money equal to the total amount of money 

2 involved in each offense committed in violation of Title 18, 

3 United States Code, section 1957, or conspiracy to commit such 

4 offense, for which a defendant is convicted, 

5 3. Pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 

6 853(p), as incorporated by Title 18, United States Code, Section 

7 982, each defendant shall forfeit substitute property, up to the 

8 total value of the property described in paragraph 2 above, if, 

9 by any act or omission of said defendant, the'property described 

10 in paragraph 2, or any portion thereof, (a) cannot be located 

11 upon the exercise of due diligence; (b) has been transferred or 

12 sold to, or deposited with, a third party; (c) has been placed 

13 

14 

15 

. 16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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1 beyond the jurisdiction of the court; 

2 (d) has been substantially diminished in value; or (e) has 

3 been commingled with other property that cannot be divided 

4 without difficulty. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 ANDRE BIROTTE JR . _ 

:: Uhtc ;:'D ACCornoy 

13 ROBERT E. DUGDALE 

14 
Assistant United States Attorney 
j:!hief,-Criminal J;J~vision 

15 -RICHARD E. ROBINSON . 
Ass:fst:ciri.t united States- Attorney 

16 Chief, Maj or Frauds Section _ 

17 _JILL T. F'EENEr _, 
Assistant·united States Attorney 

18 ,Deputy Chief, Major Frauds SeQtion 

19 _ 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

_ LANA MORTON-OWENS 
GRANT B. GELBERG 
Assistant United States Attorneys 
Major Frauds Section 
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'; < 

.•.. UNITE:IJ S'I'A~ES DISTRICT·. CQUR'I' . 
·.: .· .• ·~l •' 

· FOR THR CEN1~£: l)fsi~ic'r 9~ CALIFORN;A, ... ·.· .. 

UNITED STATES of' 1'ME:R:rCJ:i.', .•· ,, l\[o.· (!R i~~~22 (B} -DDP-15 . . . . . . . . ' . . . . 

.Plaintiff, VERDI CT FORM 
. ',.: 

v, 

ELZABUDAGOVA 

Defendant.· 
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1 , .DEP'ENDANT .. ELZA: .. BUDAGIOVA: 

2. cotmT ·ONE (Conspiracy .to Distr~bute ·.Controlled Substa11ces) 

3 . we, the jury in the abovec9apt16nea case, lmaniinouk1y find 

4. defendant Elza Budagova: · .. 

:·5: 
.. - .. 

6 ··GUILTY 

'7 

8 NOT GU:J;LTY ' 

9. 

10 of c(Jnspira~; to.di~tributecoD.trblied substances as cfiarged in Count 
,. ' .~ ', .. 

u One of the Second SupersediJ:t9 Ind;i.ct)ll,ent. 

12. 

13. 

14 
''' 15' 

16 

17' 

18 

19 

20· 

21 

22. 

23,, 

.24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

. . : ~·, · .. 
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i/ 
; 

'I 

1 .. DEFENDANT ELZA-BUDAQOVA' 

2 .COUNT TWO. (Conspiracy to Commit ·Heath care Fraud). 

· 3 we,.· the jury. iri the above-captionec;i case, unanimously find 

· 4 defendant .Elza )ludagova,: · 

5, 

6 

·7' 

,9 ,, 

9. 

10. 

,11 
' ' 

12 

13 

GU!LTY· 
· ... ' 

- : . :; ; .· 

NO'.l' GUIL'r/ . 
. . . - . -_·:·-~ . . . . . 

·,"- ' .. . _:_··.':.· :.- . :· .·. - .· 

of co~spiracy t:o commit health care fraud ai cl)arged in Count fwd of 

the .second Sl;lperseding. Indictmeiit. 
·. ,-_. 

1.4 Please have_: th""-.for.,r..;..-<Jotj sign 'and· date the form·.· 

·15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

·21 

22 

2,3 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

'FPRElPERSON OF THE ''JURY 

DATED: October· ... J,Z , 2014 ·at Los Angeles', California;, 
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United States District Court 
Central District of California 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA vs. Docket No. CR 11-00922 (B) DDP (15) 

Defendant ELZA BUDAGOVA 

akas: ARAMAISOVNA Elza 

Social Security__ J_ J_ J_ 
(Last 4 digits) 

JUDGMENT AND PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER 

MONTH DAY YEAR 

In the presence of the attorney for the government, the defendant Aua. 20 2015 

COUNSELJ'D Dominic Cantalupo, Panel. 
(Name of Counsel) 

----:-:::-1 n GUILTY, ~nd the court being satisfied that there is a 
~ LJ!actual basis for the plea. D NOLO Q 

CONTENDERELJ NOT 
GUILTY 

~ There being a I GUil TY, defendant has been convicted as charged of the 
~ finding/verdict of offense(s) of: 

JUDGMEN 
TAND 
PROB/ 
COMM 
ORDER 

21 U.S.C. § 846, 21 U.S.C. 841 (b}(1)( C ):Conspiracy to Distribute Controlled Substances (Count 1) 
18 U.S.C. § 1349, 18 U.S.C. 1347: Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud (Count 2) 
as charged in the Second Superseding Indictment. 

The Court asked whether there was any reason why judgment should not be pronounced. 
Because no sufficient cause to the contrary was shown, or appeared to the Court, the Court 
adjudged the defendant guilty as charged and convicted and ordered that: Pursuant to the 
Sentencing Reform Act of 1984, it is the judgment of the Court that the defendant is hereby 
committed to the custody of the Bureau of Prisons to be imprisoned for a term of: 

Pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984, it is the judgment of the Court that the defendant, 
Elza Budagova, is hereby committed on Counts One and Two of the Second Superseding Indictment to the 
custody of the Bureau of Prisons for a term of 36 months. This term consists of 36 months on Count One of 
the Second Superseding Indictment and 36 months on Count Two, to be served concurrently. 

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be placed on supervised release for a term of 
three years. This term consists of three years on each of Counts One and Two of the Second Superseding 
Indictment, all such terms to run concurrently under the following terms and conditions: 

1. The defendant shall comply with the rules and regulations of the United States Probation Office, 
General Order 05-02, and General Order 01-05, including the three special conditions delineated in General 
Order 01-05. 

2. During the period of community supervision, the defendant shall pay the special assessment and 
restitution in accordance with this judgment's orders pertaining to such payment. 

3. The defendant shall cooperate in the collection of a DNA sample from the defendant. 
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4. The defendant shall apply all monies received from income tax refunds to the outstanding 
court-ordered financial obligation. In addition, the defendant shall apply all monies received from lottery 
winnings, inheritance, judgments and any anticipated or unexpected financial gains to the outstanding 
court-ordered financial obligation. 

The drug testing condition mandated by statute is suspended based on the Court's 
determination that the defendant poses a low risk of future substance abuse. 

RESTITUTION: It is ordered that the defendant shall pay restitution pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3663 (A). 
Defendant shall pay restitution in the total amount of $1,236,988 to victims as set forth in a separate victim 
list prepared by the probation office which this Court adopts and which reflects the Court's determination of 
the amount of restitution due to each victim. The victim list, which shall be forwarded to the fiscal section of 
the clerk's office, shall remain confidential to protect the privacy interests of the victims. 

Restitution shall be due during the period of imprisonment, at the rate of not less than $25 per 
quarter, and pursuant to the Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. If any amount of 
the restitution remains unpaid after release from custody, nominal month!Y payments of at least 10% of 
defendant's gross monthly income but not less than $50, whichever is greater, shall be made during the 
period of supervised release and shall begin 30 days after the commencement of supervision. Nominal 
restitution payments are ordered as the Court finds that the defendant's economic circumstances do not 
allow for either immediate or future payment of the amount ordered. 

The amount of restitution ordered shall be paid as set forth on the list attached to this judgment. If the 
defendant makes a partial payment, each payee shall receive approximately proportional payment unless 
another priority order or percentage payment is specified. 

The defendant shall be held jointly and severally liable with co-participants, Miran Derderian, Lilit 
Mekteryan, David Smith, Keith Pullam, Julie Monique Shishalovsky, Anjelika Sanamian, Rosa Garcia 
Suarez, Edgar Hovannisyan and Eleanor Melo Santiago for the amount of restitution ordered in this 
judgment. The victims' recovery is limited to the amount of their loss and the defendant's liability for 
restitution ceases if and when the victims receive full restitution. 

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(f)(3)(A), interest on the restitution ordered is waived because the 
defendant does not have the ability to pay interest. Payments may be subject to penalties for default and 
delinquency pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(g). 

The defendant shall comply with General Order No. 01-05. 

FINE: All fines are waived as it is found that the defendant does not have the ability to pay a fine in addition 
to restitution. 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT: It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special 
assessment of $200, which is due immediately. Any unpaid balance shall be due during the 
period of imprisonment, at the rate of not less than $25 per quarter, and pursuant to the 
Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. 

SENTENCING FACTORS: The sentence is based upon the factors set forth in 18 U.S.C. § 3553, including 
the applicable sentencing range set forth in the guidelines. 
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It is further ordered that the defendant surrender herself to the institution designated by the Bureau of 
Prisons on or before 12 noon, on November 30, 2015. In the absence of such designation, the defendant 
shall report on or before the same date and time, to the United States Marshal located at the Roybal Federal 
Building, 255 East Temple Street, Los Angeles, California 90012. 

In addition to the special conditions of supervision imposed above, it is hereby ordered that the Standard Conditions 
of Probation and Supervised Release within this judgment be imposed. The Court may change the conditions of 
supervision, reduce or extend the period of supervision, and at any time during the supervision period or within the 
maximum period permitted by law, may issue a warrant and revoke. supervision for a violation occurring during the 
supervision period. 

August 20, 2015 

,11 111~~~ )juYvt(JA/1~ . . 
Date United States District Judge 

It is ordered that the Clerk deliver a copy of this Judgment and Probation/Commitment Order to the U.S. Marshal or 
other qualified officer. 

Clerk, U.S. District Court 

August 20, 2015 

Filed Date 

By John A. Chambers 

Deputy Clerk 

The defendant shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court (set forth below). 

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF PROBATION AND SUPERVISED RELEASE 

While the defendant is on probation or supervised release pursuant to this judgment: 

1. The defendant shall not commit another Federal, state or local crime; 
2. the defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the written 

permission of the court or probation officer; 
3. the defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the 

court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and complete 
written report within the first five days of each month; 

4. the defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation 
officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer; 

5. the defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other 
family responsibilities; 

6. lhe defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation unless 
excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other 
acceptable reasons; 

7. the defendant shall notify the probation officer at least 10 days prior 
to any change in residence or e1nployment; 

8. the defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not 
purchase, possess, use, distribute, or administer any narcotic or other 
controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, 
except as prescribed by a physician; 

9. the defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances 
are illegally sold, used, distributed or administered; 

10. the defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal 
activity, and shall not associate with any person convicted of a felony 
unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer; 

11. the defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any 
time at ho1nc or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation of any 
contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer; 

12. the defendant shall notify the probation officer within 72 hours of 
being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement officer; 

13. the defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer 
or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without the permission 
of the court; 

14. as directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third 
parties of risks that nlay be occasioned by the defendant's criminal 
record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the 
probation officer to make such notifications and to conform the 
defendant's compliance with such notification require1nent; 

15. the defendant shall, upon release from any period of custody, report 
to the probation officer within 72 hours; 

16. and, for felony cases only: not possess a fircann, destructive device, 
or any other dangerous weapon. 
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D The defendant will also comply with the following special conditions pursuant to General Order 01-05 (set forth 

STATUTORY PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO PAYMENT AND COLLECTION OF FINANCIAL 
SANCTIONS 

The defendant shall pay interest on a fine or restitution of more than $2,500, unless the court waives interest or 
unless the fine or restitution is paid in full before the fifteenth (15'") day after the date of the judgment pursuant to 18 
U.S.C. §3612(f)(1). Payments may be subject to penalties for default and delinquency pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3612(g). 
Interest and penalties pertaining to restitution , however, are not applicable for offenses completed prior to April 24, 
1996. 

If all or any portion of a fine or restitution ordered remains unpaid after the termination of supervision, the 
defendant shall pay the balance as directed by the United States Attorney's Office. 18 U.S.C. §3613. 

The defendant shall notify the United States Attorney within thirty (30) days of any change in the defendant's 
mailing address or residence until all fines, restitution, costs, and special assessments are paid in full. 18 U.S.C. 
§3612(b )(l)(F). 

The defendant shall notify the Court through the Probation Office, and notify the United States Attorney of any 
material change in the defendant's economic circumstances that might affect the defendant's ability to pay a fine or 
restitution, as required by 18 U.S.C. §3664(k). The Court may also accept such notification from the government or the 
victim, and may, on its own motion or that of a party or the victim, adjust the manner of payment of a fine or restitution
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3664(k). See also 18 U.S.C. §3572(d)(3) and for probation 18 U.S.C. §3563(a)(7). 

Payments shall be applied in the following order: 

CR-104 (03-11) 

1. Special assessments pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3013; 
2. Restitution, in this sequence: 

Private victims (individual and corporate), 
Providers of compensation to private victims, 
The United States as victim; 

3. Fine; 
4. Community restitution, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3663(c); and 
5. Other penalties and costs. 

JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER Page 4 of 6 



Case 2:11-cr-00922-FMO Document 1126 Filed 08/20/15 Page 5 of 6 Page ID #:11569 

USA vs. ELZA BUDAGOVA CR 11-00922 (B) DDP (15) 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS FOR PROBATION AND SUPERVISED RELEASE 

As directed by the Probation Officer, the defendant shall provide to the Probation Officer: (1) a signed release 
authorizing credit report inquiries; (2) federal and state income tax returns or a signed release authorizing their disclosure 
and (3) an accurate financial statement, with supporting documentation as to all assets, income and expenses of the 
defendant. In addition, the defendant shall not apply for any loan or open any line of credit without prior approval of 
the Probation Officer. 

The defendant shall maintain one personal checking account. All of defendant's income, "monetary gains," or 
other pecuniary proceeds shall be deposited into this account, which shall be used for payment of all personal expenses. 
Records of all other bank accounts, including any business accounts, shall be disclosed to the Probation Officer upon 
request. 

The defendant shall not transfer, sell, give away, or otherwise convey any asset with a fair market value in excess 
of $500 without approval of the Probation Officer until all financial obligations imposed by the Court have been satisfied 
in full. 

These conditions are in addition to any other conditions imposed by this judgment. 

RETURN 

I have executed the within Judgment and Commitment as follows: 

Defendant delivered on 

Defendant noted on appeal on 

Defendant released on 

Mandate issued on 

Defendant's appeal determined 
on 

Defendant delivered on 

at 
the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons, with a certified copy of the within Judgment and 
Commitment. 

United States Marshal 

By 
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Date Deputy Marshal 

CERTIFICATE 

I hereby attest and certify this date that the foregoing document is a full, true and correct copy of the original on file 
in my office, and in my legal custody. 

Clerk, U.S. District Court 

Filed Date Deputy Clerk 

FOR U.S. PROBATION OFFICE USE ONLY 

Upon a finding of violation of probation or supervised release, I understand that the court may (1) revoke supervision, 
(2) extend the term of supervision, and/or (3) modify the conditions of supervision. 

These conditions have been read to me. I fully understand the conditions and have been provided a copy of 
them. 

(SigneLI.J--------------
Defendant 

U. S. Probation Officer/Designated Witness 

Date 

Date 
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